New Jersey Institute of Technology Digital Commons @ NJIT

Theses

Electronic Theses and Dissertations

6-30-1957

Exchange adsorption of electrolytes on titanium dioxide

Richard Algimantas Slepetys New Jersey Institute of Technology

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.njit.edu/theses

Part of the Chemical Engineering Commons

Recommended Citation

Slepetys, Richard Algimantas, "Exchange adsorption of electrolytes on titanium dioxide" (1957). *Theses*. 2597.

https://digitalcommons.njit.edu/theses/2597

This Thesis is brought to you for free and open access by the Electronic Theses and Dissertations at Digital Commons @ NJIT. It has been accepted for inclusion in Theses by an authorized administrator of Digital Commons @ NJIT. For more information, please contact digitalcommons@njit.edu.

Copyright Warning & Restrictions

The copyright law of the United States (Title 17, United States Code) governs the making of photocopies or other reproductions of copyrighted material.

Under certain conditions specified in the law, libraries and archives are authorized to furnish a photocopy or other reproduction. One of these specified conditions is that the photocopy or reproduction is not to be "used for any purpose other than private study, scholarship, or research." If a, user makes a request for, or later uses, a photocopy or reproduction for purposes in excess of "fair use" that user may be liable for copyright infringement,

This institution reserves the right to refuse to accept a copying order if, in its judgment, fulfillment of the order would involve violation of copyright law.

Please Note: The author retains the copyright while the New Jersey Institute of Technology reserves the right to distribute this thesis or dissertation

Printing note: If you do not wish to print this page, then select "Pages from: first page # to: last page #" on the print dialog screen



The Van Houten library has removed some of the personal information and all signatures from the approval page and biographical sketches of theses and dissertations in order to protect the identity of NJIT graduates and faculty.

EXCHANGE ADSORPTION OF ELECTROLYTES ON TITANIUM DIOXIDE

BY

RICHARD A. SLEPETYS

A THESIS SUBMITTED TO THE FACULTY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CHEMICAL ENGINEERING OF NEWARK COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE

 \mathbf{OF}

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN CEEMICAL ENGINEERING

NEWARK, NEW JERSEY

ABSTRACT

During the manufacture of titanium dioxide pigments many processing steps are carried out in solutions of electrolytes. Adsorption of these electrolytes strongly affects properties of the finished pigments.

Adsorption of electrolytes was studied on titania samples prepared by controlled neutralization of titanium tetrachloride solutions with annonium hydroxide, and one sample of commercial sulfate process rutile titania. In analogy to zirconia--as reported by Kraus and Phillips--^{22,23} titania also behaved as a weak enion exchanger in acid solutions and as a weak cation exchanger in basic solutions. Acid or base liberated was approximately equivalent to ions exchanged. On the best sample the exchange capacity was 0.8 milliequivalents per gram for sodium, 1.1 for barium, and 0.7 for sulfate. These values compare with the exchange of 1.4 millimoles of chromete ions per gram of zirconia, reported by Kraus and Phillips.²³

The isotherm data were best correlated by the use of Langmuir's equation because it postulates conditions corresponding to ion exchange; i. e., monolayer adsorption on active sites. Since Freundlich's equation does not

take into account the saturation of adsorbent with adsorbate, it applied only at lower concentrations. The modified BET equation was good because only low relative saturations were reached.

Hofméister series essentially applied to about 0.3 N solutions. At higher concentrations the order changed to $Ba^{++} Na^{+} > Li^{+} K^{+}$.

As it is typical of true ion exchange, temperature increase (25° C. to 70° C.) had no effect on the capacity of a laboratory-prepared sample. The capacity of the plant titanis sample decreased with temperature, indicating weaker attraction for the ions.

The few articles dealing with adsorption of electrolyes on titanium dioxide disagree about the nature of this adsorption: some investigators have reported strong adsorption of anions with little or no adsorption of cations (Ehatia and Ghosh,³ Kargin and Tolstaya ¹⁸) while others have found the opposite to be true (Verkhovskii³⁶ and coworkers). These discrepancies in the literature can be explained now on the basis of amphoteric behavior of titania: cation exchange was reported in basic solutions and anion in acid ones.

APPROVAL OF THESIS

FOR

DEPARTMENT OF CHEMICAL ENGINEERING NEWARK COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

BY

FACULTY COMMITTEE

APPROVED:

- Killy Comments

NEWARK, NEN JERSEY

JUNE, 1957

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author wishes to express his gratitude to professor George C. Keeffe, thesis advisor, for his guidance and suggestions in carrying out the experimental work and in the preparation of the thesis, Dr. R. W. Brickenkamp, Research Director of Titanium Division, National Lead Company, for the permission to use the laboratory facilities, Mr. S. F. Bartram for obtaining X-ray diffraction diagrams of titania samples, and Mr. T. H. Schmidt of Stauffer Chemicals Company (formerly member of the research staff, National Lead Company, Titanium Division) for valuable suggestions in the preparation of these samples and estimation of their surface area.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Abstract	1
Approval	iii
Acknowledgements	iv
Table of Contents	v
List of Figures	¥11
List of Tables	viii
Introduction	1
Literature	3
Adsorption from Aqueous Solutions	3
Adsorption of Dyes and Surf-ctants	5
Adsorption in Paint Systems	6
Adsorption of Gases	7
Adsorption on Zirconium Dioxide	7
Effect of Adsorption Conditions on the Adsorption	
Capacity	8
Methods of Study	9
Adsorption Isotherm Correlations	10
Experimental Procedures	13
Sample Preparation	13
Determination of Surface Area	17
Adsorption Rate Determinations	18

Determination of Titration Curves	18
Determination of Adsorption Isotherms	19
Analytical Methods	20
Results	22
Rate Experiments	22
Titration Cupves	22
Adsorption Isotherms	25
Discussion	44
Conclusions	53
Recommendations	54
Nomenclature	5 5
References	56

ı

LIST OF FIGURES

1.	Titration Curves 24
2.	Effect of pHoon Na Adsorption 24
3.	Na Isotherms; Freundlich Plot
4.	Na Isotherms; Lengmuir Plot
5.	Na Isotherms; BET Plot
6.	K and Li Isotherms; Langmuir Plot
7.	Ba Isotherms; Freundlich Plot
8.	Ba Isotherms; Langmuir Plot
29.	Ba Isotherms; BET Plot
10.	Sol_ Isotherms; Freundlich Plot 41
11.	Son Isotherms; Langmuir Plot 42
12.	SOT Isotherms; BET Plot 43
13.	Effect of Charge and Ionic Radius 47
14.	Surface Area Correlation 48
15.	Verkhovskii's Data; Langmuir Plot 49

vii

LIST OF TABLES

I.	Sample Preparation Data	14
II.	Sample Composition	17
III.	Titration Gurve Solutions	18
IV.	Composition of Electrolyte Solutions	21
V.	Adsorption Rate Measurements	22
VI.	Titration Curve Data	23
VII.	Sodium Isotherm Data	27
VIII.	Potassium Isotherm Data	28
IX.	Lithium Isotherm Data	29
X.	Barium Isotherm Data	30
XI.	Aluminum Isotherm Data	31
XII.	Chloride Isotherm Data	32
XIII.	Sulfate Isotherm Data	3 3
xIV.	Ionic Radii and Activity Coefficients of Cations	51

viii

INTRODUCT ION

It is a well-known fact in colloid chemistry that small amounts of materials adsorbed on a surface affect profoundly the properties of that surface.³⁷ Since pigmentary titanium dioxide has a comparatively large surface area (about 9 square meters per gram) and since many processing steps in its manufacture are carried out in solutions of electrolytes, appreciable adsorption of these electrolytes may take place. These adsorbed materials, in turn, affect dispersion and flocculation of the finished pigments in paint vehicles and their performance in other products where the hiding and whitening power of titanium dioxide is in some way utilized.

It is obvious, then, that knowledge of interaction between the surface of titanium dioxide and the surrounding electrolyte is of value to pigment manufacturers as well as users.

Adsorption of gases on titanium dioxide has been studied quite extensively, yet little has been reported in the literature on the adsorption of electrolytes. Furthermore, review of this literature disclosed a disagreement as to the nature of adsorption that takes place on titanium dioxide. Verkhovskii³⁶ and coworkers found strong exchange adsorption of cations with no anion adsorption. On the other hand, Bhatia and Ghosh³ reported stronger adsorption of anions than cations. Similarly, Kargin and Tolstays,¹⁸ and Brusilovskii and Poshvina⁷ found appreciable adsorption of anions.

An explanation of this disagreement suggests itself from the work of Kraus and Philliphs^{22,23} with zirconium dioxide. They found that zirconium dioxide behaved as a cation exchanger in basic solutions and as an anion exchanger in acid solutions.

The thesis work, therefore, was designed to study the nature of adsorption of electrolytes on titanium dioxide and thereby explain the separent disagreements in the literature. Effects of pH, solution concentration, valence of ion, sign of charge, temperature, and surface area were studied. From these effects the nature of adsorption was inferred.

LITERATURE

Adsorption from Aqueous Solutions

Bhatia and Ghosh³ studied the adsorption of ions on freshly flocculated titanis sols. The sols were prepared by careful addition of dilute titanium tetrachloride solution to water at 18°C. The resulting sols contained about 15 grams per liter titanium dioxide. These sols could be dialyzed to a maximum pli of 4.1 before coagulation took place. As the adsorbate (various sodium and potassium salts) was added, the sols gelled immediately. After 20 hrs. of equilibration with shaking, the supernatant liquid was analysed and the adsorption claculated. The adsorption of various anions in gram-moles per gram of adsorbent decreased in the following sequence: $Fe(ON)_6^{-3}$ $NO_2^* > SO_4^{*2} > C1^* > S_2O_3^{*2} > Cr_2O_7^{*2} > Br^* > Fe(CN)_6^{4} > IO_3^* > CrO_4^{*2} >$ OH. The magnitude of adsorption ranged from 0.392 millimoles per gram for ferricyanide at 0.2882 molar equilibrium concentration to 0.0266 millimoles per gram at 0.0392 molar concentration. Anions were stronger adsorbed than cations since the pH of the equilibrium solution was found to increase due to liberation of OH" ions.

A similar study was made by Verkhovskii ³⁶ and coworkers. Titania gel was propared by dilution of titanium tetrachloride with water followed by aging and evaporation until a jelly formed. This jelly was washed with water, dried at room temperature for several days, washed again with concentrated sulfuric acid, dried at 110°C, 4hrs., and finished in vacuo at 170-180°C. The gel was contacted with dilute solutions of alkali hydroxides, armonium hydroxide, salts, and acids. Adsorption was determined by titration of hydrogen or hydroxyl ions liberated by the exchange. Bases were adsorbed strongly (up to 1.5 millimoles per gram), cations from salt solutions were adsorbed somewhat less by a postulated mechanism of hydrolytic decomposition, and no adsorption of acids was detected.

Kargin and Tolstaya¹⁸ studied adsorption of sulfuric acid on freshly flocculated titania sols. The sols were prepared by the addition of titanium tetrachloride to hot water followed by dialysis to remove most HCL. Sodium sulfate was added to these sols, and the adsorption of hydrolytically formed sulfuric acid was determined. When the residual amount of HCL in the sol was low, adsorption of H_2SO_4 decreased linearly with pH to a zero value at neutral pH. As more HCL was left in the sols, the curve assumed an S shape.

Brusilovskii and Poshvina⁷ measured the specific surface of titanic acids by the adsorption of phosphoric acid. The adsorption increased when the pH value at precipitation of titania was higher.

Gapon12 used titanium dioxide and aluminum oxide as

adsorbents in developing equations for the simultaneous adsorption of ammonium hydroxide and ammonium chloride.

Adsorption of Dyes and Surfactants

Morley and Wood²⁷ made a study of the adsorption of dyes on titanium dioxide. They found that only basic dyes were adsorbed if in the preparation of titanium dioxide the neutralization of titanium tetrachloride was carried over to a basic pH, and acid dyes were adsorbed when this neutralization was stopped slightly on the acid side. The authors theorized that this behavior was due to the formation of a basic chloride when the tetrachloride was not fully neutralized, and the formation of a titanate with corrected to formation of a titanate

Ewing and Liu¹⁰ studied the adsorption of dyes on commercial rutile, anatase, and zinc oxide pigments. The equilibrium technique using a 5 g. sample of a pigment and 25 ml. of adsorbate solution was employed. Nine days were required to obtain the equilibrium. Freundlich and Langmuir isotherm equations did not apply. The data could be correlated by the BET adsorption equation modified to apply for solutions; concentration value was substituted for pressure, and dye adsorbed per gram of adsorbent was substituted for the volume of gas adsorbed. On the basis of this correlation and the reversibility of adsorption physical bimolecular adsorption was postulated.

ormanowski³¹ conducted a similar study with titanium dioxide hydrolyzed from an ilmenite sulfate solution. This raw material was dried at temperatures ranging from 100°C. to 900°C. Five gram samples were equilibrated with 25 ml. of organic dye solutions (1.00 or 0.005 grams per liter concentration). Equilibrium was attained in five minutes. Acidic dyes were adsorbed 90% or better on samples dried up to 700°C. Samples dried at higher temperatures adsorbed only small amounts of acidic dyes. The reverse was found to be true about the basic dyes: they were little adsorbed on samples dried below 700°C., but adsorption increased above this drying temperature.

Adsorption of desulfoneted lignosulfonete and sulfonated nephthalene-formaldehyde condensate surfactants on commercial enatase pigments was reported by Brown5 Isotherms reaching saturation at 0.02=0.04 g. per 100ml. adsorbate concentration were obtained.

Hydrous titania was found to be a good mordant adsorbing alizarin orange, coerulain, and alizarin blue dyes.38

Adsorption in Paint Systems

The adsorption of paint drivers by titanium dioxide pigments has been of some concern to paint manufacturers. Adsorption of cobalt, lead, and manganese naphthenates on titanium dioxide pigment from a mineral spirits solution has been reported (0.0096 g. lead, 0.0020 g. manganese, and 0.004 g. cobalt per gram of titanium dioxide).

A qualitative study of the adsorption of cobaltous ion from aqueous and acetic acid solutions on commercial titanium dioxide pigments was made by Nicholson.³⁰ Adsorption of simple cobaltous ions was found by the use of conductometric and spectrophotometric techniques. When cobalt was coordinated with ortho-phenantroline, however, this adsorption was practically eliminated.

Adsorption of Gases

Considerable work has been reported on the adsorption of gases on titanium dioxide. Since it does not pertain directly to the subject matter of the thesis, this literature will not be discussed. Several articles, however, are listed as references, 1, 17, 19, 20, 21, 32, 34

Adsorption on Zirconium Dioxide

Adsorption of ions on zirconium dioxide was studied by Kraus and Phillips.²³ Zirconium hydroxide was prepared by the neutralization of zirconyl chloride with asmonium hydroxide and was subsequently dried at 25-800°C. This meterial adsorbed negative ions well in acid solutions and positive ions in basic solutions. Exchange capacity up to 1.4 millimoles per gram of adsorbent for chromate ion was obtained. The authors suggest that titanium dioxide may also exhibit similar properties.

Kraus²² and coworkers reported recently an improvement of the capacity of sirconis exchangers when they were

prepared as zirconium tungstate polymers.

Effect of Adsorption Conditions on the Adsorption Capacity

The adsorption capacity of a material depends not only on its previous history but also on the adsorption conditions. The temperature is known to exert little or no effect on a true ion exchange equilibrium because no covalent bonds are formed or broken; the ions only move from one environment to another.²⁸ In the case of physical adsorption increasing temperature decreases the amount adsorpted.^{13,14} Since there is energy of activation involved in the process of chemisorption, increasing temperature increases the rate of adsorption.

The dependence of adsorption of electrolytes by zirconium dioxide on pH was pointed out by Kraus and Phillips,²³ as mentioned before. Similarly, Kargin and Tolstaya's¹⁸ work on adsorption of sulfuric acid on flocculated titania sols shows a definite dependence of adsorption on pH of solution.

Evidently, this dependence is not limited to titanium dioxide and zirconium dioxide since an interesting relationship was derived by Plank³³ for the adsorption of acetate and phosphate ions on silica gel.

X/m . B[H]-9

x/m--millimoles of adsorbate per gram of adsorbant e--equilibrium concentration of adsorbate

[H⁺] --hydrogen ion concentration B, q--constants

Methods of Study

In general, three methods are used for studying adsorbents and ion exchangers: equilibration, column study, and titration. Equilibration is, probably, the most commonly used method in the laboratory. It consists simply of contacting a known amount of the adsorbent with a known volume of adsorbate solution of a given concentration until equilibrium is reached. Agitation of some kind is usually employed. At the end of the equilibration period the liquid is analyzed for the ions still remaining in solution, and the adsorption is calculated. 3,9,24,25,36 A modification of this method was used by Gregor¹⁶ and coworkers. Instead of analyzing the final equilibrium solution, they eluted the ious adsorbed on the resin and analyzed the eluate.

In the column technique, a suitable column is packed with the adsorbent, and its properties are studied by passing adsorbate and eluent solutions through it. 24,29

A cross between the column technique and the equilibration technique was developed by Fisher and Kunin¹¹ into a routine method for determining the capacities of exchange resins. The method consists of placing a weighed amount of resin into a funnel, converting it to the ionic form whose capacity has to be measured, and then eluting

this ion and analyzing the eluate. This method was elaborated to differentiate between weak and strong acidic or basic exchangers.

The characterization of a resin as to its acidic or basic strength and the determination of the number of exchange sites belonging to these types is conveniently done by the titration curve technique. 15,25 In this technique a series of samples is equilibrated with a salt solution containing an excess of acid or base. The equilibrium pH is measured and plotted against the amount of free acid or base added. The characteristic curves obtained are very similar to those of regular acid-base titrations and are indicative of the strength of acid or base being titrated.

Adsorption Isotherm Correlations

There is a good number of correlations proposed in the literature for the adsorption of gases on solids. The adsorption phenomena in dilute solutions, however, are often quite adequately correlated by the use of the classical Freundlich adsorption isotherm.¹³

$$\log \frac{\mathbf{x}}{\mathbf{m}} = \log \mathbf{K} + \frac{1}{n} \log \mathbf{c}$$

K and n are constants.

According to this equation, a straight line is obtained when a log-log plot is made of the abount of material adsorbed against its equilibrium concentration in solution.

There is one obvious weakness in the Freundlich equation. As the adsorbent becomes saturated the correlation breaks down since c continues to increase while x/m tends to level out at some saturation value.

A correlation which takes into account the saturation of the adsorbent as the concentration (or pressure, in the case of gases) of adsorbate is increased, was derived by Langmuir from equilibrium considerations between the adsorbent and the surrounding gas.¹³

$$\frac{\mathbf{p}}{\mathbf{x}/\mathbf{m}} = \frac{1}{\mathbf{k}_1 \mathbf{k}_2} + \frac{\mathbf{p}}{\mathbf{k}_2}$$

p--gas pressure

In solutions, concentration of adsorbate is substituted for pressure.

$$\frac{c}{x/m} = \frac{1}{k_1 k_2} + \frac{c}{k_2}$$

Langmuir's equation is valid for the adsorption of a monomolecular layer, which is true about chemisorption, ion exchange, and most physical adsorption in solutions. Boyd and coworkers have applied this equation successfully in cation exchange.⁴

Brunauer, Emmett, and Teller⁶ expanded Langmuir's correlation to apply for the adsorption of multiple layers.

$$\frac{p}{(p_{s} - p)(x/m)} = \frac{1}{(x/m)_{m}d} + \frac{(d - 1)p}{(x/m)_{m}dp_{s}}$$

$$p_{s}$$
--condensation pressure
$$(x/m)_{m}$$
--adsorption at monolayer coverage
$$d$$
--a constant

Having substituted equilibrium concentration for the pressure term and solubility for the condensation pressure, Ewing and Liu¹⁰ used this equation to correlate adsorption data of dyes from aqueous solutions on pigments.

EXPERIMENTAL PROJEDURES

Sample Proparation

Most adsorption studies of electrolytes on titanium dioxide reported in the literature were carried out on titania sol or gel samples prepared in some fixed fashion; i. e., none of the previous investigators (except Ormanowski) varied the conditions of sample preparation so as to have samples with different surface areas or adsorption capacities. Ormanowski³¹ obtained samples with varying adsorption capacities by drying hydrous titania at increasingly higher temperatures (100-900°C.). This procedure, however, tends to inactivate titania surface in addition to inducing particle growth.

Three titania samples were prepared by controlled neutralization of aqueous solution of titanium tetrachloride with a monium hydroxide. The precipitation conditions (given in Table I) were varied in such a manner as to yield titania samples with comparatively large surface area (for ease of adsorption study) and reasonable variation of this area between the samples. From the precipitation conditions sample 1 was expected to have the lowest surface area and sample 2 the highest. All samples were finished at the same drying temperature (375°C.).

Table I

Sample Preparation Data

Sample:	1		3
TiCl, concentration, gpl. TiO2	200	200	200
Volume, ml.	3500	3500	3500
NH OH concentration, gpl.	3 00	100	200
Volume, ml.	2 71 0	10130	4580
Addition time, min.	30	1	15
Temp. at the end of add'n. °C.	83	65	84
Cure temperature, °C.	100	80	90
Cure time, min.	60	30	45
Final HC1/TiO2 weight ratio	0.64	0.44	0.53
Number of flasks used	2	3	2

Total neutralizeable HCl in the tetrachloride solution 361 gpl.

It is known that variations in the precipitation as well as drying conditions have an effect on the surface area or activity of titania. The particular set of conditions was chosen for convenience and other above-mentioned reasons.

It was also desirable to obtain the same crystalline structure as that of the well-known rutile pigment grades. In this moment the results of adsorption study on the laboratory-prepared samples could be compared better with similar phenomena on commercial titania. For the purpose of such a comparison, commercial pigment grade titania (National Lead Company, Titanium Division) of rutile crystalline modification without any surface treatment was taken as the fourth sample.

The precipitation of titania used in the adsorption study was carried out in five-liter three-neck flasks. An agitator made of bent glass rod (about 1.5 inches radial sweep) and running at 195 RPM was inserted through the middle neck. The opening was sealed with a rubber stopper equipped with a vapor-tight gland for the egitator. One of the side necks held a reflux condenser, and the other a thermometer. Titania hydrate was precipitated in such flasks by the controlled addition at a uniform rate of titanium tetrachloride to amnonium hydroxide. Titanium tetrachloride solution was added to ammonium hydroxide rather than ammonium hydroxide to the tetrachloride since titania hydrate obtained in this manner is less gelatinous and easier to handle then that prepared by the reversed neutralization procedure. The concentrations and amounts of reagents used, rates of addition, and curing temperatures are shown in Table I, p. 14. Since the hydrolysis of a single batch could not be carried out in one flask due to a large reaction volume, two or three such flasks were employed. The hydrate slurries then were blended in five-gallon bottles before further processing.

Titania sample No. 1 was propared first. It was washed by decantation; i. e., the hydrate was allowed to settle in a five-gallon bottle for one day, supernatant liquid was siphoned off, and fresh wash water added.

The operation was repeated a number of times until slow settling rate indicated low electrolyte concentration in solution. The washing was finished by deliquoring on two 24 cm. Buchner funnels with suction.

An attempt was made to wash preparations 2 and 3 in a similar manner. Due to their finer particle size, however, these samples settled very slowly. In order to speed up the washing they were flocculated with someonium hydroxide (to give approximately neutral pH) and were filtered and washed on a large vacuum filter (22.5 in. x 18.5 in.) using about 35 liters of demineralized wash water per sample.

The filter cakes were dried overnight at 120°C. in an oven and then in an electric muffle furnace at 375°C. for one hour. They were finished with a 5-inch Raymond mikro-pulverizer. The plant titania sample was also ground similarly.

The finished samples contained about 98 percent TiO₂. In addition, sample No. 1 had 0.38 percent of residual chloride (leachable in boiling 10 percent nitric acid), while no chloride could be detected in the other two preparations. The metallic impurities were determined spectrographically, and the cyystalline form of the samples was established by X-ray diffraction. All these data are shown in Table II, p. 17.

High rutile content was found in samples 1 and 3.

Table II

Sample Compositions

Sample:	1	_2_	3	Plent <u>Titania</u>
Wet Analysis TiO ₂ , % Cl ⁻ , %	97.6 0.38	97.9 Not def	98.2 tected	99.3 0.0
X-Ray Analysis Rutile, %	100	40	80	95
Spectrographic Analysis				
S102, % Al ₂ 03, % Fe ₂ 03, % Pb, % Nb, %	هی این این این این این این این این این ای	0.1 0.004 0.02 0.01		0.1 0.06 0.008 0.01 0.1
Surface Area				
Square meters per gram	73	268	1 51	9

Sample 2, however, had only 40 percent rutile, mainly, because of too low suring temperature ($80^{\circ}C_{*}$) used at the end of the hydrolysis reaction.

Determination of Surface Area

Surface area of the plant sample is known to be about 9 m^2/g . Area of laboratory-propared samples was determined by comparing adsorption of water vapor with that of a sample where area was known from BET measurements. All samples (2-3 grams) were dried at 300°C. for one hour in a mulfile furnace, cooled to 200°C. in the furnace and then to room temperature in a desideator. The samples were exposed to water vapor above 60 percent sulfuric acid (3.6 mm. Hg water vapor pressure at room temperature) at a total pressure of 5 mm. Hg for 16 hrs., and surface areas were estimated from amounts of water adsorbed.

Adsorption Rate Determinations

Adsorption rate was briefly studied by contacting a titania sample with 0.1 N HCl and NaOH for 5 min., 10 min., and 37 hrs. Conductivity of resulting solutions was measured.

Determination of Titration Curves

The titania samples were characterized as to their acidic or basic strength by the titration curves. The general procedure outlined by Kunin and Eyers²⁵ was followed. According to this procedure, acid and base solutions of different strength were prepared in a corresponding salt solution and then equilibrated with the adsorbent. Table III lists the solutions used in establishing the titration curves.

Table III

Titration Curve Solutions

Solution No:	1	_2_	_3_	L	5	6	_7
O.1N MaCl, ml.	c	10	20	0	10	20	25
0.1N HCl in 0.1N NaCl, ml.	25	15	5	0	0	0	Ö
0.1N NaOH in 0.1N NaCl, ml.	0	0	0	25	15	5	0

The presence of a neutral salt in the solutions is necessary for the determination of the noture of adsorption at neutral or near-neutral pH values.

The above-listed solutions (25 ml. per sample) were equilibrated with 5.00 g. of adsorbent. The sample and the respective solution were placed in a 2-ounce screw-cap jar, several of such jars were in turn set into a large wide-mouth bottle in a position perpendicular to the **axis** of the bottle, and the bottle was rolled on a ball mill rack for 15 min. at 105 RPM. The equilibrated mixtures were separated by centrifugation, 10.00 ml. of clear solution was pipetted off, and diluted to 100.0 ml. in a volumetric flask, The equilibrium pH was measured on the undiluted remainder with Beckman model H2 pH meter, using glass and calomel electrodes.

In addition to the measurement of equilibrium pH, the adsorption of anion and cation was determined by analyzing original md equilibrium solutions. These solutions were filtered through two No. 42 Whatman papers, if any turbidity still remained after centrifugation.

Determination of Adsorption Isotherms

The equilibration technique used in establishing the titration curves was also employed in the determination of adsorption isotherms at room temperature. At elevated temperature ($70^{\circ}C_{*}$) the setup had to be modified in order to heat the samples. Titania samples and adsorbate solutions

were placed into 6-inch test tubes. The tubes were well stoppered, clamped in a Burrell, model BB, laboratory shaker, lowered into a water bath (70-75°C.), and shaken for 15 min. Bath temperature was reached in 1-2 minutes. The liquid from equilibrated mixtures was decanted into centrifuge tubes, centrifuged in order to separate the remainder of solids, and analyzed.

Isotherms were determined at room temperature for sodium, potassium, lithium, and barium in basic solutions, and for aluminum, chloride, and sulfate in acid solutions. In order to somewhat buffer these solutions, chloridehydroxide mixtures in the approximate 5:2 molar ratio were used for sodium, potassium, lithium, and barium; sodium selt-acid solutions in 1:1 molar ratio were taken for chloride and sulfate; eluminum chloride alone was used for aluminum. Solution analyses are shown in Table IV, p. 21. Isotherms were also determined for sodium at 70°C. on two samples.

Analytical Methods

Adsorption was determined by analyzing the original and equilibrated solutions. Sodium, petassium, lithium, and barium were analyzed flame photometrically. Aluminum was precipitated and weighed as aluminum 8-quinolinate. Sulfate was also determined gravimetrically as barium sulfate. Chloride was titrated potentiometrically with silver nitrate using silver and glass electrodes.

Table IV

Ion Studied	Mole Fraction of Salt	Mole Fraction of Base or Acid
L1 +	0.801	0.199
Na +	0.717	0.283
Ba ++	0.745	0.255
Al +++	0.646	0.354
C1 -	1.000	0.000
S0 -	0.496	0.504
L	0.545	0.455

Composition of Electrolyte Solutions

Equilibrium solutions of several isotherms were also analyzed by acid or base titration for hydrogen or hydroxyl ions liberated through ion exchange.

RESULTS

Rate Experiments

The few adsorption rate measurements which were made indicated that equilibrium was reached within 5 min. or less (Table V).

Table V

Adsorption Rate Measurements

	Equilibrium Solution	Resistivity, ohm-om
Time	0.1 N HCl	Q.1 N NaOH
Original Solution	274	420
5 min.	760	12000
10 min.	730	11900
37 hrs.	720	11800

Titration Curves

The titration curve data are given in Table VI, p. 23, and the curves are plotted in Fig. 1, p. 24. In addition, the dependence of sodium adsorption on pH is shown graphically in Fig. 2, p. 24.

Table VI

Titration Curve Data

Solution:	1	_2_	3	4	5	6	1
e for Cl" c for Nat	0.202 0.100	0.161 0.100	0.120 0.100	0.102 0.200	0 .101 0,160	0,100 0,120	0.0994 0.0994
Sample 1							
Acid or base added [*] Equil. pH c for Cl [*] x/m for Cl [*] c for Na ⁺ x/m for Na ⁺	0.512 1.18 0.211 +0.046 0.100 0.9	0.307 1.28 0.172 -0.056 0.100 0.0	0.102 1.70 J 0.131 0.056 0.100 0.0	0.512 12.10 0.125 0.118 0.173 0.14	0.307 11.67 0.130 -0.148 0.136 0.12	0.102 7.93 0.123 •0.118 0.116 0.02	0.0 2.69 0.114 -0.077 0.0994 0.00
Sampte 2							
Acid or base added" Equil: pH c for Cl" x/m for Cl" c for Na ⁺ x/m for Na ⁺	0.511 1.56 0.170 0.16 0.100 0.0	0.307 2.36 0.135 0.13 0.0968 0.015	0.102 6.20 J 0.120 0.0 0.096 0.02	0.511 1.49 0.103 0.0 0.117 0.42	0.307 10.32 0.102 0.0 0.103 0.29	0.102 9.00 0.103 0.0 0.099 0.102	0.0 7.92 0.102 0.0 0.0900 0.048
Sample 3							
Acid or base added" Equil. pH c for Cl" x/m for Cl" c for Na ⁺ x/m for Na ⁺	0.509 1.27 0.185 0.087 0.100 0.00	0.306 1.68 0.141 0.102 0.0947 0.02	0.102 4.38 1 0.118 0.010 0.0926 0.04	0.509 2.03 0.103 0.0 .147 0.27	0.306 11.33 0.102 0.0 0.112 0.24	0.102 9.33 0.103 0.0 0.099 0.107	0.0 7.65 0.103 0.0 0.09144 0.025
Plant Sample							
Acid or base a added" Equil, pH c for Cl" x/m for Cl"	0.504 1.30 0.200	0.302 1.37 0.163	0.101 1.86 1 0.122 ot dete	0.504 2.29 0.103 ctable	0.302 12.14 0.109	0.101 11.78 0.103	0.0 6.35 0.101
c for Na ⁺ x/m for Na ⁺	0.100 0.0	0.0935 0.03	0.0985 0.005	.193 0.035	0.152 0.04	0.115 0.025	0.0961 0.017
* M1111em	iivalent	ner er	am of	Tiont	aatd in	soluti	ວາາອ

* Milliequivalents per gram of TiO2; acid in solutions 1, 2, and 3, base in 4, 5, and 6. For the definitions of symbols see Nomenclature, p. 55.



Fig. 2

Effect of pH on Ns⁺ Adsorption



Adsorption Isotherms

Adsorption isotherms for cations were determined in basic solutions because they were adsorbed much stronger at higher pH values. Adsorption of anions was studied for the same reason in acid solutions. Adsorption of aluminum, however, had to be studied in an acid solution since aluminate rather than trivalent aluminum ion exists in basic solutions. Data are given in Tables VII through XIII, pp. 27-33, and plotted in Figures 3 through 12, pp. 34-43.

Typical Langmuir adsorption isotherms were obtained for all ions studied. The modified BET equation also applied fairly well. Only the pattern of chloride adsorption was not quite clear due to low amounts adsorbed and some scatter of data. Froundlich's equation applied quite well for cations in basic solutions up to the point of adsorbent saturation. For sulfate Froundlich plot was curved due to the gradual saturation of adsorbent. The capacity was reached quickly with aluminum and chloride ions.

Residual HGI on sample 1 obsaured the determination of chloride adsorption on this sample. Similarly, potassium adsorption could not be determined on the plant titania sample because of interference of potassium in the sample, which is commonly introduced as a calcination control agent.²

Liberation of hydrogen or hydroxyl ion by the exchange was determined in potassium, lithium, chloride, and sulfate iso therm experiments. This liberation was found to be closely equivalent to the respective ion adsorbed (Tables VIII, IX, XII, and XIII).

Elevating the temperature to 70°C, did not affect the adsorption of sodium on a laboratory-prepared sample (Table VII and Figure 3). It was decreased somewhat on the plant sample.

The effect of charge and hydrated ionic radius for several cations is illustrated in Figure 13, p. 47. Hofmeister series was followed up to about 0.3 N concentration. At higher concentrations the order of decreasing adsorption was $Ba^{++}>Na^+>Li^+>K^+$.

Adsorption on laboratory samples was found to be approximately proportional to their surfaces (Figure 14, p. 48, and Tables VII, X, XI, and XIII). Adsorption on plant sample, however, did not fit into this pattern. It was somewhat higher per unit area.

Table VII

Sodium Isotherm Data

<u></u>		Equil.	<u>x/m</u>			<u>c</u> <u>X(c,-c)</u>	<u>c/c</u>
Room Temp Sample 1	ooratur	<u>e</u>					
0.01000 0.1000 0.1000 1.000 1.400 2.00	0.01 0.09 80 0.385 0.939 1.36 1.97	2.7 8.9 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0	0 .010 .077 .31 .2 .2	9.8 5.0 3.0 7 10	720 360 220 510 730	1.6 0.85 0.56 1.4 2.3	.0156 .0615 .150 .217 .317
Sample 2							
0.01000 0.1000 0.1000 1.000 1.100 2.00	0.00371 0.0688 0.327 0.851 1.24 1.83	4 8.6 9.3 11.4 11.9 12.0 11.9	.0320 .159 .37 .762 .82 .87	0.117 0.433 0.88 1.12 1.5 2.1	31.3 116 240 300 400 560	0.0187 0.0798 0.15 0.207 0.30 0.47	.000596 .0110 .0531 .136 .198 .292
Sample 3							
0.01000 0.1000 0.1000 1.000 1.400 2.00	0.0050 0.0712 0.345 0.900 1.27 1.90	3 8.5 9.8 11.8 12.0 12.1 11.9	.0253 148 28 510 66 51	0.199 0.481 1.2 1.76 1.9 3.7	30.0 72.7 180 266 290 560	0.0318 0.0776 0.020 0.328 0.202 0.85	.000803 .011/4 .0550 .143 .206 .303
Plant Sample							
0.01000 0.1000 0.400 1.000 1.400 2.00	0.00 81 (0.0 870 0.373 0.975 1.40 1.98	9.5 11.8 12.1 12.0 12.1 11.9	.0146 .116 .14 .13	0.555 0.750 2.7 7.5 20	5.0 6.8 24 68 180	0.0888 0.121 0.47 1.4 4.7	.00129 .0139 .0595 .155 .316
°.s =	6.1735	5					

For the definition of symbols see Nomenclature, p. 55.

Table VII

(Continued)

<u></u>	<u>c</u>	<u>x/m</u>	x/m	$\frac{c}{x/m(c_{g}-c)}$	<u>c/c</u>
70°C. Sample 3					
0,01000 0,1000 0,400 1,000 2,00	0.00595 0.0780 0.337 0.899 1.86	•0206 •12 •321 •514 •71	0.289 0.697 1.05 1.75 2.02	0.0449 0.109 0.172 0.315 0.550	.000923 .0108 .0522 .139 .288
Plant Same	<u>le</u>				
0.01000 0.1600 0.460 1.000	0.00868 0.0980 0.388 0.950	,00661+ ,010 ,060 ,25	1.31 9.8 6.5 3.8	0,203 1,5 1,1 0,69	.00135 .0152 .0601 .147

°s = 6.45³⁵

1

Table VIII

Potassium Isotherm Data

<u> </u>	<u></u>	Equil pH	x/m	<u>x/m</u> '		$\frac{0}{(m_0 - 0)}$	<u>c/c</u> s
Sample	3						
.00953 .0953 .238 .476 .715 .953	.00421 .0722 .198 .425 .661 .913	8.6 9.9 12.2 13.0 1315 1316	.0271 .118 .20 .26 .28 .20	.0124 .0937 .19 .24 .27 .28	0.155 0.612 0.99 1.6 2.4 4.6	0.0347 0.139 0.23 0.40 0.63 1.2	.000942 .0162 .0443 .0952 .148 .204
°,	= 4.47 ³	15	x/m* w a	s calou	lated f	rom base	titration.

Table IX

Lithium Isotherm Data

<u> </u>	<u> </u>	Equil.	<u>x/m</u>	<u>x/m</u> '	C ⊼∕m	$\frac{c}{x/m(c_g-c)}$	<u>c/c</u> a
Sample 3							
•00792 •1982 •396 •594 •792	•00573 •0688 •169 •335 •505 •705	8.6 9.0 9.6 10.8 11.7 12.0	.0111 .0530 .15 .31 .45 .44	.00806 .0699 .120 .33 .44 .51	0.517 1.30 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.6	.0370 .097 .030 .081 .032 .12	.000410 .00494 .0122 .0245 .0376 .0531
<u>Plant</u> Sar	nple						
.00792 .0792 .1982 .396 .594 .792	.00701 .0760 .194 .391 .594 .792	8.5 12.0 12.3 12.3 12.3 12.3	.0046 .016 .02 .03	•00796 •027 •030 •035 •04 •03	1.5 4.8 9.7	.11 .34 .70 .96	.000502 .00545 .0140 .0287

°s = 14.035

į

:

x/mt was colculated from base titration.

Table X

Barium Isotherm Data

<u> </u>	<u>e</u>	Equil pH	x/m			$\frac{c}{x/m(c_{g}=c)}$	<u>c/c</u> s
Sample 1							
.01169 .1169 .234 .390 .585 .780	.01169 .0875 .163 .319 .521 .740	4.0 7.4 11.1 12.1 12.3 12.6	0 0.151 0.36 0.36 0.33 0.20	0.580 0.45 0.89 1.6 3.7	42.3 33 64 120 270	0.433 0.354 0.80 1.7 5.4	.0612 .114 .223 .359 .518
Sample 2							
•01169 •1169 •234 •390 •585 •780	00035 0144 112 213 361 549	7.1 7.5 8.5 9.9 11.8 12.3	0.0579 0.370 0.623 0.904 1.14 1.18	0.32 0.177 0.241 0.343 0.596 0.793	1.6 32.1 48.2 63.2 85.0 124	0.0042 0.0865 0.136 0.194 0.297 0.53	•00025 •0311 •0784 •149 •253 •382
Sample 3							
.01169 .1169 .234 .390 .585 .780	•00164 •0555 •129 •248 •440 •625	7.1 7.9 9.6 11.9 12.3 12.5	0.0512 0.313 0.535 0.723 0.739 0.789	2 1121 1.0 1.9 4.1 4.7 3.7	4.83 26.7 36.4 51.8 90.1 120	0.0224 0.128 0.186 0.281 0.60 0.99	.00115 .0389 .0902 .174 .308 .437
Plant Sample							
.01169 .1169 .234 .390 .585 .780	.00440 .0979 .213 .372 .561 .741	10.3 12.0 12.3 12.5 12.6 12.7	0.0365 0.096 0.11 0.091 0.12 0.20	1.0 1.9 4.1 4.7 3.7	1.1 9.0 17 37 42 33	0.0848 0.75 1.6 3.9 5.4 5.4	.00308 .06 8 5 .149 .260 .393 .519

°s = 1.43³⁵

Tab	lø	XI
whether a standard	and the second second	And the second second second

Aluminum Isotherm Data

	Emit'	l Ron	Chloride		For Al	uminum	
<u>0</u> 0	<u>pH</u>		X/m	<u> </u>	<u>x/m</u>	x/m	X/A
Sample 2							
•00996 •0996 •249 •498 •747 •996	7.8 2.7 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2	•00960 •0772 •222 •468 •725 •967	0018 114 15 11 15	0 .0480 .1931 .442 .688 .942	•0510 •264 •29 •29 •30 •28	0 0.182 0.67 1.5 2.3 3.4	0 48.8 180 400 620 910
Semple 3							
•00996 •0996 •249 •498 •747 •996	6.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2	.0100 .0852 .232 .478 .735 .986	0 .0682 .087 .102 .061 .051	0 .213 .465 .712 .960	.0507 .101 .13 .17 .17 .18	0 0.42 1.2 2.8 4.2 5.3	0 63 180 120 630 800
Plant Ser	nple						
•00996 •0996 •249 •1498	2.9 2.5 2.4 2.3	.0100 .0992 .0249 .498	0 0 0	4880-2005 1000 1007 1000-2005 1007 1000-2005	4997 1997 2000 4456 2007 2007 1998 1997 2000 1998 1997 2000	الله ميد ميد جد مد الله ميد مد الله	ania Anti-Ang Sanja Ang-Ang Sanja Ang-Ang-Ang Sanja Sanja

Table XII

Chloride Isotherm Data

<u>6</u>	<u>.</u>	Equil. pH	x/m	x/m*
Sample 1				
•0987 •246 •497 •740 •987	0.108 0.260 0.507 0.756 1.01	1.2 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2	097 072 051 082 011	الله مدير الله . الله مدير الله . الله مدير الله . الله مدير الله .
Sample 2				
•0987 •246 •497 •740 •987	0.0775 0.214 0.455 0.698 0.957	8.2 2.4 0.6 0.5 0.5	.108 .16 .21 .27 .15	.222 .31 .33 .35 .31
Sample 3				
•0987 •246 •497 •740 •987	0.0790 0.228 0.472 0.718 0.976	7.5 1.4 0.4 0.4	.100 .092 .13 .11 .056	.16 .18 .19 .20 .15
Flant Sam	ple			
•0987 •246 •497 •740	0.0986 0.252 0.501 0.746	1.2 0.3 0.3 0.3	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	.015 .02 .01

x/m! was calculated from acid titration.

Ì

Table XIII

Sulfate Isotherm Data

<u> </u>		Equil. <u>pH</u> <u>x/m</u>	<u>x/m</u> •	c x/m		<u>с</u> <u>қ/m(ся-с)</u>	<u>c/0</u> 8
Sample							
0.01079 0.1079 0.270 0.540 0.810 1.079	0.0017 0.0722 0.230 0.486 0.740 1.019	1.6.0545 1.1.186 0.9.21 0.6.28 0.4.36 0.3.31	.0252 .051 .067 .11 .12 .11	0.068 0.388 1.1 1.7 2.1 3.3	5.0 28.3 80 120 150 240	.00622 .0359 .102 .16 .21 .33	.00016 .00662 .0211 .01146 .0679 .0934
Sample 2							
0.01079 0.1079 0.270 0.540 0.810 1.079	0.0096 0.0643 0.177 0.424 0.677 0.939	7.8.0061 4.6.217 1.6.48 0.8.593 0.6.680 0.6.715	•0251 •251 •49 •552 •588 •588	1.6 0.286 0.37 0.715 0.996 1.31	430 76.6 99 192 267 351	.15 .0265 .035 .0681 .0978 .131	.00088 .00590 .0162 .0389 .0621 .0861
Sample 3	3						
0.01079 0.1079 0.270 0.540 0.810 1.079	0.010 0.0735 0.205 0.463 0.716 0.983	7.1 .005 2.4 .175 1.2 .33 0.7 .39 0.5 .48 0.7 .49	•0250 •23 •298 •35 •37 •38	2.0 0.420 0.622 1.2 1.5 2.0	300 63.5 94.1 180 230 300	.18 .0389 .0582 .12 .15 .20	•00092 •00674 •0188 •0425 •0657 •0901
Plant Somple							
0.01079 0.1079 0.270 0.540 0.810 1.079	0.015 0.106 0.260 0.526 0.771 1.050	2.20 1.4.01 0.9.050 0.5.071 0.4.20 0.6.15	.0247 .03 3 .95 .07 .08 .08	5.2 7.4 3.9 7.0	90 567 363	Points Scatter	ed
°s	10.9 35	x/m*	WAS CE	lculate	d from	acid tit	ration.







36

D



















DISCUSSION

The data collected during this study indicate that titanium dioxide entered ion exchange reactions amphoterically. Depending on the pH of solutions, either eations or anions were exchanged.

Titration curves were characteristic of weak acid or base exchangers. Curves for samples 2 and 3 were flatter than those for sample 1 and the plant sample, indicating somewhat higher capacities.

Curve No. 1 was displaced on the graph to the right due to residual HCl in the sample from incomplete washing. Chloride content of this sample was 0.38 percent or 0.11 milliequivalents of chloride per gram. The displacement of this titration curve from the axis of zero base or acid addition was about 0.1 milliequivalent per gram at neutral pH. It is evident, that free acid in the sample had to be neutralized before pH of the equilibrium solution could increase. The presence of chloride in sample No. 1 was also responsible for negative chloride adsorption values; chloride ions were leached out rather than adsorbed on the sample.

The adsorptive power of titania samples was very strongly dependent on the pH of solution (see Table VI and Figure 2). Only very small amount, if any, of sodium ions was adsorbed below a pH of 8. From this point on, adsorption of sodium ions increased approximately in a linear fastion with pH. Figure 2 also shows that adsorption capacity of titania samples increased in accordance with the conditions of preparation: plant titania $\langle \text{Ho}, 1 \langle \text{No}, 3 \rangle$ No. 2. Due to inactivation and decrease of surface of the plant titania sample at high calcination temperature (about 900°C), its adsorption capacity in both add and basic solutions was appreciably lower than that of laboratory preparations.

The adsorption of chloride ions in acid solutions was not as great as that of sodium ions in basic solutions (see Table VI). This also can be seen on the titration curves, especially, for samples 2 and 3. The "break" on the acid side was somewhat sharper and closer to the axis of zero addition than on the basic side, indicating higher capacity for the base than for the acid.

Isotherm data followed well the Langmuir's adsorption equation. This equation was successfully used by Boyd⁴ and coworkers to correlated cation exchange by an organic exchange resin. Since the Langmuir equation postulates formation of an adsorbed monolayer on active sites of adsorbent surface in equilibrium with dissolved ions (or surrounding gas), and since these conditions also describe well ion exchange reactions, exchange adsorption on titania surface may be inferred. Data reported by Verkhovskii³⁶ and coworkers also correlated well using Langmuir's equation

(Figure 15, p. 49).

The BET equation gave good correlations for the simple reason that only low relative saturation was reached in the adsorption experiments. In this region the equation is very similar to Langmuir equation, and describes the formation of a monolayer. This, of course, is true about ion exchange.

Due to saturation of the adsorbent, Freundlich iso-

Liberation of acid or base in emounts equivalent to ions adsorbed offered additional indication of exchange reaction.

The following mechanism is postulated for the exchange reaction between the hydrated surface of TiO₂ and the surrounding electrolyte. Tetrevalent titanium in solution is hexa-coordinated and forms during hydrolysis of sulfate solutions a polymeric structure.²









It is quite possible that a similar hydroted polymeric structure is formed when titanium tetrachloride is neutralized with a base. Water is an integral part of the structure and is noteasily removed. Titania finished at high temperature still readsorbs some of this water from the atmosphere (0.6 millimoles per gram was adsorbed on the plant sample used in this study). Apparently, depending on the pH of solution, either hydrogen or hydroxyl ion can be replaced by an appropriate ion.

As it could be expected for true ion exchange, the temperature effect with the laboratory sample was negligible. The decrease in adsorption with increasing temperature on the plant sample indicated weaker attraction for the ions. This may be due to inactivation of the surface at higher finishing temperatures.

Equivalence of adsorption per unit surface area for three laboratory samples was indicative of equal number of exchange sites present per square meter of area. There was, of course, some scatter of data in the surface area correlation, but, generally, the correlation was reasonably good. Again, plant sample was out of line with laboratory samples, due toodifferent conditions of preparation. Varying amounts of rutile and anatase in the laboratory samples, apparently, had no effect on their surface activity.

The effect of charge and ionic radius in dilute so-

lutions (up to about 0.3 N) can be explained by the hydrated ionic radius and the charge of ions. Due to the higher charge, barium was attracted strongost; it was followed by potassium, sodium and lithium, in the order of increasing ionic radius. Atchigher concentrations this order was upset. The reason for this may be the difference in the activities of the respective ions (Table XIV). No comparrison could be made between the exchange adsorption of these ions and aluminum, since the latter was studied in acid solutions.

Table XIV

Ionic Radii and Activity Coefficients of Cations,

Ion	Hydrated Ionic Radius, A ²⁵	Activity Coefficient in 0.1N Cl ⁻ Solution ²⁶
LI	10.1	0.775
Nat	2.9	0.659
Ba++	5.2 6.3	0.399

The literature about adsorption of electrolytes on titanium dismide can be explained now on the basis of amphoteric exchange behavior of the material. The adsorption experiments of the tia and Ghosh,³ Kargin and Tolstaya,¹⁸ and Bm siloviskii and Poshvina⁷ were done in acid solutions. Consequently, they reported predominant adsorption of anions. On the other hand, Verkhovskii ³⁶ and coworkers concentrated more on basic solutions and found that cations were adsorbed. However, they also carried out some experiments in neutral and acid solutions, yet did not detect any exchange of anions. The reason for their inability to detect anion exchange in strongly acid solutions is believed to lie in their analytical method and sample treatment. Verkhovskii's titania was treated with concontrated sulfuric acid beb re final drying. Essentially, then, it was an exchanger in the sulfate form. Other anions could be exchanged for this sulfate under suitable conditions. However, this exchange was not detected by Verkhovskii and coworkers because they analyzed for hydrogen or hydroxyl ion liberated. In case of cation exchange there were hydrogen ions to be liberated, but in case of anion exchange sulfate was released instead of the hydroxyl ion.

Such inability to detect anion exchange by titration with a standard acid was observed with sulfate adsorption on sample 1. Since this sample contained some residual chloride, the sulfate adsorption value as determined by acid titration was appreciably lower than that obtained from sulfate analyses (Table XIII). Evidently, here, too, some chloride was released in exchange for sulfate ions.

١

CONCLUSIONS

Titanium dioxide was found to behave as an amphoteric ion exchanger: weakly acid in basic solutions and weakly basic an acid solutions.

Exchange capacities were primarily dependent on surface area of titania, pH and concentration of solutions. Under best conditions 0.8 milliequivalents of sodium, 1.1 of barium, and 0.7 of sulfate ions could be exchanged per gram of titania.

The isotherm data were best correlated by Langmuir equation since this equation was derived for adsorption conditions similar to ion exchange.

Hofmed ster series applied essentially up to about 0.3 N solutions. At higher concentrations the order changed to $Ba^{++} > Na^{+} > Li^{+} > K_{*}^{+}$ probably, due to change in activity coefficients of the ions.

The increase in temperature from 25° C. to 70° C. had no noticeable effect on the exchange of electrolytes on comparatively active laboratory titania simples. The capacity of less active commercial pigmentary titania decreased with temperature.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The gbove-presented work suggests several topics for further study:

1. Reversibility of adsorption:

a. At constant solution pH.

b. At varying solution pH.

2. Evaluation of the performance of titania exchangers in a column.

3. Development of improved exchanger capacities by the use of "polymerization" technique such as employed by Kraus²² and cowo rkers in the preparation of zirconium tungstate exchangers.

NOMENCLATURE

c--equilibrium concentration, gramequivalents per liter. co--original concentration of electrolyte, gramequivalents per liter.

e_s--concentration of saturated electrolyte solution, gramequivalents per liter.

p--gas pressure.

 p_s --condensation pressure at the given temperature.

x/m--adsorption, milligramequivalents of adsorbate per gram of titania.

x/A--adsorption, milligramequivalents of adsorbate per

l square meter of titania surface.
(x/m)_m--adsorption at monolayer coverage.
a, b, d, k, K, n--constants.

REPERENCES

- 1. Barklay, H., "Adsorbent Gel Containing Oxides of Titanium and Aluminum," U. S. 1,822,848, September 8, 1931, to Silica Gel Corporation, Baltimore, Maryland.
- 2. Barksdale, J., <u>Titanium</u>. New York: Ronald Press Company, 1949.
- 3. Bhetia, L. S. and S. Ghosh, "Adsorption of Titanium Hydroxide Sol," <u>Journal of the Indian Chemical So-</u> <u>ciety</u>, Vol. 7, 1930, pp. 687-97.
- 4. Boyd, G. E., J. Schubert, and A. W. Adamson, "The Exchange Adsorption of Ions from Aqueous Solutions by Organic Zeolites. I. Ion Exchange Equilibria," <u>Journal of the American Chemical Society</u>, Vol. 69, 1947, pp. 2018-29.
- 5. Brown, G., L., "Use of Surfactants in Disperse Systems," Official Digest of the National Association of Paint and Varnish Production Clubs, Vol. 28, June, 1956, pp. 456-71.
- 6. Brunauer, S., P. H. Emmett, and E. Teller, "Adsorption of Gases in Multimolecular Layers," <u>Journal of the</u> <u>American Chemical Society</u>, Vol. 60, February, 1938, pp. 309-19.
- 7. Brusilovskii, A. M., and M. M. Poshvina, "The Technology of Titanium Dioxide. II. Investigation of the Adsorptive Power of Titanic Acids," <u>Trudy Instituta</u> <u>Lakov i Krasok</u>, Vol. 2, 1939, pp. 36-41 (<u>Chemical</u> <u>Abstracts</u>, Vol. 34, 1940, p. 2142).
- 8. Cincinnati-D yton-Indianapolis-Columbus Paint and Varnish Production Club, "Some Factors Affecting Drier Activity," <u>Proceedings of the Scientific Section</u> of the National Paint, Varnish and Laquer Association, Circular No. 529, 1942, pp. 273-314.
- 9. Daniels, F. et al., Experimental Physical Chemistry. Fourth Edition. New York: McGraw-Hill Book Company, Inc., 1949.

- Ewing, N. W. and F. W. J. Liu, "Adsorption of Dyes from Aducous Solutions on Pigments," Journal of Solloid Science, Vol. 8, 1953, pp. 204-13.
- 11. Fisher, S. and R. Kunin, "Routine Exchange Capacity Determinations of Ion Exchange Resins," <u>Analytical</u> Chemistry, Vol. 27, July, 1955, pp. 1191-94.
- 12. Gapon, E. N., "Differential Adsorption Coefficients of two Ions," <u>Research Institute of Fertilizers and</u> <u>Soil Management, Soil Science Proceedings, Leningrad</u> <u>Department</u>, Vol. 2, 1933, pp. 89-95 (<u>Chemical Abstracts</u>, Vol. 37, 1943, p. 295).
- 13. Glasstone, S., <u>Textbook of Physical Chemistry</u>. Second Edition. New York: D. Van Nostrand Company, Inc., 1946.
- 14. Glasstone, S., K. J. Laidler, and H. Eyring, The Theory of Rate Processes. New York: McGraw-Hill Book Company, Inc., 1941.
- 15. Gregor, H. P. and J. I. Bergmant, "Characterization of Ion Exchange Resins. I. Acidity and Number of Constituent Cation Exchange Groups," Journal of the American Chemical Society, Vol. 70, July, 1948.
- 16. Gregor, H. P. et al., "Studies of Ion-Exchange Resins. Capacity of Sulfonic Acid Cation-Exchange Resins," Journal of Colloid Science, Vol. 6, 1951, pp. 20-32.
- 17. Honig, J. M. and L. H. Reverson, "Adsorption of Mitrogen, Oxygen, and Argon on Rutile at Low Temperatures; Applicability of the Concept of Surface Heterogeneity," <u>Journal of Physical Chemistry</u>, Vol. 56, January, 1952, pp. 140-44.
- Kargin, V. A. and M. Tolstaya, "Exchange Adsorption on Colloidal Titanium Dioxide," Journal of Physical Chemistry, U. S. S. R., Vol. 13, 1939, pp. 211-15.
- 19. Klosky, S., "Titania Gol," Journal of Physical Chemistry, Vol. 34, 1930, pp. 2621-23.
- 20. Klosky, S. and J. Burggraff, "Adsorption of Sulfur Dioxide by Titania Gel," Journal of the American <u>Chemical Society</u>, Vol. 50, 1928, pp. 1045-59.
- 21. Klosky, S. and L. P. L. Woo, "Adsorption of Mixtures of Hasily Condensable Gases," Journal of Physical Chemistry, Vol. 32, 1928, pp. 1387-95.

- 22. Kraus, K. A., "New Job for Inorganics," <u>Chemical and Engineering News</u> report on a paper presented at 130-th A. C. S. National Meeting in Atlantic City, N. J., Vol. 34, October 1, 1956, pp. 4760-62.
- 23. Kraus, K. A. en H. O. Phillips, "Anion Exchange Studies, XIX," Journal of the American Chomical Society, Vol. 78, January, 1956, p. 249.
- 24. Kraus, K. A., F. Nelson, and G. W. Swith, "Anion Exclusing Studies, IX. Adsorbability of a Number of Metals in Hydrochloric Acid Solutions," Journal of Physical Chemistry, Vol. 58, 1954, pp. 11-17.
- 25. Kunin, R. and R. J. Myers, <u>Ion Exchange Resins</u>, New York: John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 1950.
- 26. Landolt-Boernstein Physikalisch-Chemische Tabellen, W. A. Roth and K. Scheel (eds.), Second Supplement. Fifth Edition. Berlin: Verlag von Julius Springer, 1931.
- 27. Morley, A. M. and J. K. Wood, "The Behaviour of Titanic Acid toward Dyestuffs," The Journal of the Society of Dyers and Colourists, Vol. 39, 1923, pp. 100-105.
- 28. Nachod, F. C., Ion Exchange, Theory and Apolication. New York: Academic Press, Inc., 1949.
- 29. Neugebauer, W. and Schaefer, "Senaration of Cations through Physical Adsorption in the Aluminum Oxide Column," Zeitschrift fuer Anorganische und Allgemeine Chemie, Vol. 274, 1953, pp. 281-88.
- 30. Nicholson, D. C., "Adsorption of Simple and Complex Cobalt Ions on Titanium Dioxide," Journal of the American Chemical Bociety, Vol. 64, December, 1942, pp. 2820-22.
- 31. Ormanowski, D. R., "Adsorption of Organic Dyes on Hydrous Titanium Dioxide," Master's Thesis, Columbia University, 1947.
- 32. Pickering, H. L. and H. C. Eckstrom, "Physical Adsorption of Gases on Anstase," Journal of the American Chemical Society, Vol. 74, October, 1952, pp. 4775-77.
- 33. Plank, C. J., "The Adsorption of I ns from suffer Solutions on Silica, Alumina, and Silica-Alumina Gels," <u>Journal of Physical Chemistry</u>, Vol. 57, March, 1953, pp. 284-90.

- 34. Reverson, L. H. and J. M. Honig, "The Effect of Sorption on the Structure of Surfaces of Solids. II. Sorption of NO₂-N₂O₁ on Rutile," Journal of the American <u>Chemical Society</u>, Vol. 75, August, 1953, pp. 3917-19.
- 35. Seidell, A., <u>Solubilities of Inorganic and Metal</u> <u>Organic Compounds</u>, Vol. I. Third Edition, New York: D. Van Nostrand Co., Inc., 1940.
- 36. Verkhovskii, S. E., A. K. Verhovskeys, and M. V. Kartsynel, "Proparation of Titanic Acid Gel and its Adsorptive Properties," Journal of Applied Chemistry, U. S. S. R., Vol. 11, 1938, pp. 4-11.
- 37. Weiser, H. B., <u>Colloid Chemistry</u>. Second Edition. New York: John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 1949.
- 38. Weiser, H. B., The Hydrous Oxides. New York: McGraw-Hill Book Company, Inc., 1920.